
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE - INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Date: Tuesday, 5 June 2018

4 June 2018

PART 1
1. Buxton Health, Care and Public Service Hub (Pages 3 - 20)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Delegation Scheme No. 
         Table 4a – A1 

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Individual Executive Decision 

 
5 June 2018 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendices Attached - Appendix A – Location Plan   
 Appendix B - Memorandum of Understanding 

     
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the progress that has been made to 

regenerate the former Nestle Waters bottling plant off Station Road in Buxton. 
It recommends that the Council formally enters into a partnership with a 
number of other public sector organisations to develop a business case for a 
health, care and public service hub. The report also proposes that the 
partnership is governed by a memorandum of understanding which is attached 
to this report.    

 
 
2. Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Executive Councillor: 

2.1 Notes the progress that has been made in planning for the regeneration of the 
former Nestle Waters bottling site off Station Road, Buxton. 

 
2.2 Notes the approval by the Cabinet Office of £100,000 under the One Public 

Estate initiative to support the proposed Health, Care and Public Service Hub. 
 

2.3 Authorises the involvement of the Council in the wider public sector 
partnership in order to develop a detailed business case for consideration by 
the Executive. 
 

2.4 Approves the attached Memorandum of Understanding to govern the 
involvement of Council and other partners in the partnership. 

TITLE: Buxton Health, Care and Public Service Hub 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Tony Ashton – The Leader of the 

Council  
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Dai Larner, Executive Director  
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Buxton wards 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 2 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 Nestle Waters (UK) Ltd. vacated their bottling plant off Station Road in Buxton 

in 2011 to move to the new plant at Waterswallows. Since then the site has 
been vacant. An application by Tesco was submitted and subsequently 
withdrawn in 2015 but despite a number of informal approaches no further 
planning applications have been made to develop the site.  

3.2 In August 2016 the Council began discussions with the Derbyshire Community 
Health Services NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust) which was looking for a site 
to consolidate and modernise the health facilities in the town. This interest has 
now progressed and has now resulted in the Trust purchasing part of the site. 

3.3 The Council has been in discussions with the Trust and a number of other 
health and public service providers in order to progress the wider project. In 
September the Council contributed to a One Public Estate (OPE) bid 
submitted by Derbyshire County Council to secure funding to establish a 
business case for the proposals. We were informed that the bid was 
successful in December 2017 and as a result secured £100,000 for the 
partnership to develop its plans. 

3.4 In light of the significant progress that has been made by the Trust and the 
success of the partnership in securing the OPE funding the partners are 
agreed that a more formal arrangement is required. This report sets out a 
recommended approach to the formation and governance of that partnership 
arrangement. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The project has the potential to help deliver the following aims of the 

Corporate Plan:  
 

• Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to 
live and work 

• To meet financial challenges and provide value for money 
• Support economic development & regeneration 
• Protect and improve the environment   

 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 To not approve the involvement of the Council in the partnership. This is not 

considered the preferred option because the Council will miss the opportunity 
to improve health care facilities in the town, address car parking capacity and 
create significant efficiencies and improved effectiveness in the delivery of 
public services. Not participating may also lead to opportunities to address the 
potential to contribute to the five year housing supply by opening up brownfield 
land for redevelopment. .        
 

Page 4



 3 

5.2 To approve the involvement of the Council in the partnership. The partnership 
has secured One Public Estate funding to develop a business case for a new 
public sector hub. This has the potential to improve health care facilities in the 
town, address car parking capacity and create significant efficiencies and 
improved effectiveness in the delivery of public services. The project could 
also contribute to the achievement of the five year housing supply by opening 
up brownfield land for redevelopment.  

 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
No implications 
 

6.2 Workforce 
No implications as a result of this report but these will be assed as 
part of the wider business case if relevant. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
No implications at this stage.  
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
It is proposed that the initial business case is developed using the 
£100,000 One Public Estate grant which was awarded to 
Derbyshire County Council.. 
 

6.5 Legal 
No implications as a result of this report but these will be assessed 
as part of the wider business case if relevant. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
The site is included in the Councils Local Plan and the outline 
proposals are broadly in conformity with policy DS22. 
 

6.7 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
There has been widespread public consultation on the proposals 
developed by McCarthy and Stone and the Trust. The planning 
applications that have been submitted for the site will be subject to 
statutory public consultation in accordance with the Council’s 
Statement of Community Involvement but are not the subject of this 
report. 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
A detailed risk assessment will be included in the business case. 
.  
 
 
 

Page 5



 4 

 
Dai Larner 

Executive Director of Place 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Name of any papers Council building or web hyperlink Dai.larner@highpeak.go
v.uk 
07980847818 

 
 
 
 
7. Background and Detail 
 
 The site 

 

7.1 The site is identified as a strategic development site in the Council’s Local 
Plan. The relevant policy (DS22) supports a mixed use development of the site 
that has regard to the Buxton Design and Place-making Strategy and the 
Station Road Design Framework Supplementary Planning Document. Both the 
strategy and the document stress the importance of this site in contributing to 
improving the gateway into the town centre. 

7.2 The site has a long and complex planning history. In 2011 Nestle Waters UK 
Ltd. vacated their bottling plant on the site to move to the new plant at 
Waterswallows. Since then the site has been vacant. An application by Tesco 
was submitted and subsequently withdrawn in 2015 but despite a number of 
informal approaches no further planning applications have been made to 
develop the site until earlier this year.  

7.3 In August 2016 the Council began discussions with the Derbyshire Community 
Health Services NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust) which was looking for a site 
to consolidate and modernise the health facilities in the town. This interest has 
now progressed and has resulted in the Trust purchasing part of the site. 

7.4  The Council has now received three planning applications for the former 
bottling plan. The first is a full planning application from McCarthy and Stone 
for extra care accommodation for older people. The second is an outline 
planning application for a multi-agency healthcare campus and the third is a 
full planning application for an access road. These planning applications are 
not the subject of the report and will be dealt with through the planning 
process. 

 
The Proposal 

 
7.5 A number of public service and health providers have been working in 

partnership to develop a proposal for shared building space on the site. The 
proposals are intended to consolidate health services in the town on the site in 
order to modernise the provision and make the services more effective and 

Page 6



 5 

efficient. In light of this opportunity other public sector partners including the 
Council have taken the opportunity to assess whether a shared service 
arrangement on the site could improve services and reduce costs for the tax-
payer. 

7.6 The aims of this partnership are: 

a. To consolidate and modernise the health and care facilities in Buxton 

b. To improve a key gateway site in accordance with the High Peak Local 
Plan policy DS22 

c. To provide a modern, cost-effective and efficient new premises for other 
public sector functions to be defined 

d. To increase car parking capacity in Buxton’s town centre 

e. To increase the availability of deliverable housing sites in Buxton 

f. To enable efficient and accessible service delivery by other public 
sector partners. 

7.7 The next phase of the project is to develop a detailed business case to assess 
the potential for a health, care and public service hub. It is intended that this 
work is funded from the OPE grant. It is proposed that the results of the work 
will provide the partnership with information to assist in financing the scheme, 
designing the hub and preparing the scheme for submission as a planning 
application. 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Dated ........................................................2018 

 

 

DERBYSHIRE COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 

-and- 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

-and- 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

-and- 

CHESTERFIELD ROYAL HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 

 

 

 

Memorandum of Understanding relating to the proposed health and public sector 

development at the former Nestle Waters bottling plant, off Station Road, Buxton 

 

 

 

 

Case no  

PARTIES 

1. DERBYSHIRE COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES NHS FOUNDATION 

TRUST of [                                   ] (“the Landowner”) 
2. HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL  of Buxton Town Hall Market Place 

Buxton Derbyshire SK17 6EL (“the Borough Council”) 

Page 11



3. DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall Matlock DE4 3AG (“the 
County Council”) 

  

4. CHESTERFIELD ROYAL HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST of Calow, 

Chesterfield, Derbyshire S44 5BL   (“the Chesterfield Health Trust”) 

Together “The Parties (or individually referred to as Party)” 
 

1. DEFINITIONS 

The Site means the former Nestle Waters bottling plant, off Station 

Road Buxton, within the ownership of the Landowner and 

shown edged green on the attached plan marked Appendix 

A being the land and buildings owned by the Landowner and 

registered at Land Registry with freehold title absolute under 

Title Number [                     ] 

 

The 
Associated 
Sites 

means land and property owned by the Parties in Buxton. 

 

The Relevant 
Period 

means the period commencing on the date of this 

Memorandum of Understanding and expiring on [TBA] 

subject to the provisions for early determination and 

extension set out below 

 

The MoU means this Memorandum of Understanding 

 

The Councils means the Borough Council and the County Council 

 

The Viable 
Scheme 

means a scheme meeting the requirements of the Parties 

 

The Partners 
 
 

means the Partners of the Landowner; these being the 

Chesterfield Health Trust and the Councils. These 

organisations are the lead organisations who will work with 

Page 12



 
 
 
The Report 

other organisations including the three Buxton GP practices, 

North Derbyshire CCG, the Derbyshire Health Care NHS 

Trust, and the East Midlands Ambulance NHS Trust  

means the report funded through the One Public Estate 

programme 

  
 

2. BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this document is to record the Parties’ mutual understanding and 

objectives regarding the development of former Nestle Waters bottling plant, off 

Station Road, Buxton. 

3. OVERALL OBJECTIVES AND PRINCIPLES OF COLLABORATION 

The Parties agree to work collaboratively during the Relevant Period to achieve 

the following key aims: 

a. To bring forward the development of the Site and the Associated Sites with 

the following objectives: 

i. To consolidate and modernise the health and care facilities in 
Buxton 

ii. To improve a key gateway site in accordance with the High Peak 
Local Plan policy DS22 

iii. To provide a modern, cost-effective and efficient new premises for 
other public sector functions to be defined 

iv. To increase car parking capacity in Buxton’s town centre 

v. To increase the availability of deliverable housing sites in Buxton 

vi. To enable efficient and accessible service delivery by other public 
sector partners. 
 

4. LANDOWNER’S COMMITMENTS 
During the Relevant Period the Landowner will: 

a. Notify the Partners of the disposal of any interest in the Site or 

Associated Sites, any option or joint venture agreement or other 

Page 13



agreement or other arrangements with any other party or charge or 

otherwise encumber the Site or Associated Sites; 

b. Cooperate with and act at all times in good faith towards the Partners 

and in relation to the aims of the Parties as set out in this MoU, 

including the prompt provision on an open book and free of charge 

basis of site information, site investigation reports and any other 

relevant information reasonably requested by the Partners; 

c. Assist the  Partners and the appointed consultants, where requested, 

to identify and evaluate potential uses, market demand and values, and 

development costs; 

d. Seek to identify possible means of funding a scheme for the 

development  of the Site, including potential joint venture  possibilities; 

e. allow and/or procure all such access to the Site or Associated Sites 

and to information relating to the Site or Associated Sites held by the 

Landowner as the Partners require to comply with its obligations in this 

MoU subject to any operational requirements in relation to access to 

the Site; 

f. Ensure participation in and commitment to a project board and project 
team and any other governance arrangements that are agreed by the 
Landowner and the Partners. 

  

5. PARTNERS COMMITMENTS 

        During the Relevant Period the Partners will: 

a. Co-operate with and act at all-times in good faith towards the Landowner 
and in relation to the aims of the Parties as set out in this MoU including 
the prompt provision on an open book and free of charge basis of site 
information, site investigations and any other relevant information 
reasonably requested by the Landowner; 

b. Assist the Landowner and the appointed consultants, where requested, to 

identify and evaluate potential uses, market demand and values and 

development costs; 

c. Seek to identify possible means of funding a scheme for the development  

of the Site and the Associated Sites including possible joint venture 

possibilities; 

Page 14



d. Ensure participation in and commitment to a project board and any other 

governance arrangements that are agreed by the Landowner and the 

Partners; 

e. Seek to address public access and planning constraints through a 

dedicated development team. 

 

6. PRODUCTION OF REPORT 

6.1 As soon as possible following the commencement of the Relevant Period and 

subject to obtaining all necessary approvals, the Parties will appoint 

appropriately experienced and qualified consultants to identify a potentially 

viable development scheme, including the Associated Sites, and a detailed 

business case in accordance with HM Treasury “Green Book” guidance and 

the NHS business case guidance, where other requirements of this brief can 

be met, and produce a report upon the same (“the Report”).  The Report is to 

include the following: 

a. An assessment of the current condition of the site  

b. A viability assessment including final valuation for each option being 

put forward 

c. A recommendation of a preferred option together with a full financial 

appraisal  

d. A delivery strategy for the scheme including potential sources of public 

and private sector investment 

e. A draft development programme including cashflow requirements 

which will enable the Parties to achieve RIBA Stage 2. 

 

6.2 It is anticipated that the Report will form the basis of any bid or bids, as 

required, to the relevant funding sources.   

6.3 All options will be developed in close consultation with all of the Parties to this 

MoU.   

6.4 In addition to the Report each of the Parties shall be entitled to commission 

and obtain such other reports surveys, assessments and studies and 

Page 15



commission as they may require, but shall each bear their own costs in this 

regard. 

 

7. IMPLEMENTATION 

7.1 If prior to the expiry of  the Relevant Period a scheme is agreed in writing 

between  the Parties as being potentially viable (“a Viable Scheme” ), then 

the Relevant  Period may  be extended by a period to be agreed between the 

Parties and within that additional period the Parties shall further consider the 

terms upon which they may be prepared to enter into an agreement or 

arrangement to secure the implementation of the Viable Scheme and shall 

seek to agree the terms of the same. 

7.2 The Parties shall not be obliged to enter into any agreement or arrangements 

or to do so on any particular terms, it being recognised and accepted by each 

of them that any such arrangements must be on terms which are acceptable 

to each of them in terms of their own commercial requirements and in terms of 

compliance with public law. 

8. COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLICITY 

8.1 Before any of the Parties publicises, promotes or disseminates information on 

the matters contained in the MoU to others outside the MoU they will provide 

the information in writing to the other Parties at least 48 hours before issue.  

Parties will then have 36 hours to agree the information before it can be 

issued.   

8.2 Communications and publicity can be issued more quickly if written permission 

is received from all Parties to do so. 

 

9. MoU OPERATION 

All Parties will be expected to attend at least quarterly meetings through the 

period of this Memorandum of Understanding.  Parties will have up to 10 

days, not including weekends or public holidays and notwithstanding 

‘communications and publicity’ to respond to any consultations issued as part 

Page 16



of the study.  Additional time can be agreed if all Parties consent to an 

extension of time. 

 

10. CONFIDENTIALITY 

10.1 This MoU and all other information related to the proposed development is 

for the information of the Parties and their advisors only. 

10.2 Subject to clause 24 below none of the details of this MoU or of any 

information obtained by one Party from the other pursuant to it shall [during 

the Relevant Period] be shared by the Parties with any third party (other than 

their respective advisers) without prior written consent of the other. 

11. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

11.1Nothing in this agreement shall prevent the Parties from disclosing any 

information whether relating to the Report or Viable Scheme generally or this 

agreement or otherwise which they in their absolute discretion consider they 

are required to disclose in order to comply with the Freedom of Information 

Act 2000, the General Data Protection Regulation   and/or the Environmental 

Information Regulations 2004 and any other statutory requirements and the 

Parties reserve the right to make such disclosure without reference to the 

other parties. 

12 TERMINATION 

This MoU may be terminated: 

 a. By any of the Parties, listed above, giving the others two month’s written 

notice; 

 b. By each of the Partners immediately upon giving the Landowner written 

notice in the event that the Landowner does not comply with its commitments 

under this MoU, or becomes insolvent or there is a change of control of the 

Landowner; 

Page 17



c. By any Party immediately upon giving the other written notice in the event 

that the parties have not agreed in writing that there is a Viable Scheme prior 

to the expiry of the Relevant Period. 

13. CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION 

If this MoU is terminated pursuant to 13 above: 

a. The Parties shall (save as set out below) be released from all future 

commitment and obligations pursuant to this MoU with effect from the date of 

termination; 

b. The Parties shall not be released from any liability in respect of failure to 

comply with their respective commitments prior to the date of termination. 

14. COUNCILS’ ROLES 

14.1 Nothing contained in this MoU shall prejudice or fetter the County Councils’ 

roles, functions or duties as local authorities (including as a highways 

authority), or their abilities in relation to other schemes that may come 

forward on or adjacent to the site. Furthermore nothing in this MoU is 

intended to represent a service or works contract for the purposes of the 

Public Contracts Regulations 2006 and the Parties acknowledge that the 

Councils may be required at any point to run a competitive process in 

accordance with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 

before entering into contracts with any third party. 

14.2 Nothing contained in this MoU will prejudice or fetter the Borough Council’s 

roles, functions or duties as a planning authority, and should not be 

interpreted as demonstrating an intention to approve any planning application 

relating to the Site. 

 

15. NO PARTNERSHIP 

Each of the Parties is an independent body and nothing contained in this MoU 

Understanding shall be construed to imply that there is any relationship 

between the Parties of partnership, principal / agent or employer / employee.  

No other party shall have the right to act on behalf of another nor to bind the 

Page 18



other by contract or otherwise except to the extent expressly committed by the 

terms of this MoU. 

 

 

 

Signed on behalf of Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Foundation 
Trust  

…………………………………………………. 

Dated……………………… 

 

 

Signed on behalf of High Peak Borough Council 

…………………………………………………….. 

Dated…………………….. 

 

Signed on behalf of Derbyshire County Council 

……………………………………………………… 

Dated………………………… 

Signed on behalf of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

 

Signed on behalf of  

……………………………………………………… 

Dated…………………………….  

 

 

Page 19



 

 

Page 20


	Agenda
	1 Buxton Health, Care and Public Service Hub
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


